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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GRUPO NUTRESA S. A. 

February 22, 2019

, KaYe audited tKe accomSan\ing seSarate financial statements oI *ruSo 1utresa S� $�� ZKicK include tKe seSarate 
statement oI financial Sosition as at 'ecember ��� ����� and tKe seSarate statements oI comSreKensiYe income� 
cKanges in tKe sKareKoldersš eTuit\ and casK ǌoZs Ior tKe \ear tKen ended� and tKe summar\ oI tKe main accounting 
Solicies and otKer e[Slanator\ notes� 

0anagement’s responsibility for the separate financial statements
7Ke Management is resSonsible Ior tKe due SreSaration and Iair Sresentation oI tKe seSarate financial statements in 
accordance ZitK tKe $ccounting and )inancial ReSorting Standards $cceSted in &olombia and Ior tKe internal control 
and risk management Solicies as management determines necessar\ to enable tKe SreSaration oI financial state-
ments tKat are Iree Irom material misstatements� due to Iraud or error� 7Ke management is also resSonsible Ior tKe 
selection and aSSlication oI SroSer accounting Solicies� and Ior making reasonable accounting estimates tKat are 
reasonable in tKe circumstances�

Statutory auditor’s responsibility 
M\ resSonsibilit\ is to e[Sress an oSinion on sucK financial statements based on m\ audit�  , conducted m\ audit in 
accordance ZitK tKe $uditing Standards on )inancial ReSorting acceSted in &olombia� 7Kose standards reTuire tKat , 
comSl\ ZitK etKical reTuirements and Slan and SerIorm m\ audit to obtain reasonable assurance about ZKetKer tKe 
financial statements are Iree Irom material misstatements�  

$n audit includes SerIorming Srocedures to obtain audit eYidence about tKe amounts and disclosures in tKe financial 
statements�  7Ke Srocedures selected deSend on tKe statutor\ auditoršs Mudgment� including tKe assessment oI tKe 
risks oI material misstatements in tKe financial statements due to Iraud or error� ,n tKe assessment oI tKose risks� 
tKe statutor\ auditor considers tKe internal control releYant to tKe entit\ Ior tKe SreSaration and Sresentation oI tKe 
financial statements� in order to design audit Srocedures tKat are aSSroSriate in tKe circumstances� $n audit also 
includes eYaluating tKe aSSroSriateness oI tKe accounting Solicies used and tKe accounting estimates made b\ tKe 
management� as Zell as eYaluating tKe oYerall Sresentation oI tKe financial statements�

, belieYe tKat tKe audit eYidence , obtained is suƹcient and aSSroSriate enougK to SroYide a basis Ior m\ audit oSinion�

Opinion
,n m\ oSinion� tKe accomSan\ing seSarate financial statements� IaitKIull\ taken Irom tKe accounting books� Sresent 
Iairl\� in all material resSects� tKe financial Sosition oI *ruSo 1utresa S� $� at 'ecember ��� ����� and tKe results oI 
its oSerations and casK ǌoZs Ior tKe \ear tKen ended� in accordance ZitK tKe $ccounting and )inancial ReSorting 
Standards $cceSted in &olombia�

Statutory auditor’s report on  
the separate financial statements
(Free translation from the original in Sp anish)
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Report regarding other legal and regulatory requirements
7Ke management is resSonsible Ior comSliance ZitK certain regulator\ reTuirements in &olombia� related to tKe 
management oI accounting documentation� tKe SreSaration oI management reSorts� tKe timel\ and SroSer Sa\-
ment oI contributions to tKe ,ntegral Social Securit\ S\stem and tKe imSlementation oI a SelI�&ontrol and Risk Man-
agement S\stem Ior Mone\ /aundering and )inancing oI 7errorism� M\ resSonsibilit\ as statutor\ auditor in tKese 
matters is to SerIorm reYieZ Srocedures to issue an oSinion on tKeir due comSliance�

In light of the above, in my opinion:

a) 7Ke &omSan\šs accounting records KaYe been keSt during ���� in conIormit\ ZitK legal regulations and 
accounting tecKniTue� and transactions tKerein recorded conIorm to tKe b\laZs and decisions made b\ tKe 
Meeting oI tKe SKareKolders and %oard oI 'irectors�

b� 7Ke corresSondence� accounting YoucKers and books oI minutes and sKare register are SroSerl\ keSt and 
saIeguarded�

c� 'ue concordance e[ists betZeen tKe accomSan\ing financial statements and tKe management reSort Sre-
Sared b\ tKe Management�  7Ke administrators KaYe stated in said management reSort tKat tKe\ did not Kin-
der tKe Iree circulation oI inYoices issued b\ tKe Yendors or suSSliers�

d� 7Ke inIormation contained in tKe returns Ior selI�comSutation oI contributions to tKe ,ntegral Social Securit\ 
S\stem� Sarticularl\ regarding tKe aƹliates and tKeir base income Ior contribution� Kas been taken Irom tKe 
accounting records and suSSorting documents� $t 'ecember ��� ����� tKe &omSan\ is not in arrears regard-
ing Sa\ment oI contributions to tKe ,ntegral Social Securit\ S\stem�

e� 7Ke &omSan\ Kas imSlemented tKe $nti�Mone\ /aundering and 7errorism )inancing risk selI�control and 
management s\stem� in accordance ZitK tKat establisKed in ([ternal &ircular ��� oI ����� issued b\ tKe 
SuSerintendenc\ oI )inance�

Other matters  
,n comSliance ZitK tKe statutor\ auditoršs resSonsibilities stated in items � and � oI $rticle ��� oI tKe &olombian 
&ode oI &ommerce� in connection to tKe assessment oI ZKetKer tKe acts oI tKe &omSan\šs management conIorm 
to tKe b\laZs� orders and instructions oI tKe SKareKoldersš Meeting� and ZKetKer aSSroSriate measures oI internal 
control� conserYation and custod\ oI tKe &omSan\šs assets or tKose oI tKird Sarties in its Sossession are in Slace� , 
KaYe issued a seSarate reSort dated )ebruar\ ��� �����

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GRUPO NUTRESA S. A. 

February 22, 2019

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Statutory Auditor  
Professional Card No. 167200-T
Appointed by PwC Contadores y Auditores Ltda. 

(Original in Spanish signed by:)
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Certification of the Financial Statements

The undersigned Legal Representative and the General Counsel of Grupo Nutresa S. A.

CERTIFY:

22 of February of 2019

We have previously verified all claims, herewith contained, in the Consolidated Financial Statements, at December 31, 2018 
and 2017, according to, the regulations, and the same that have been faithfully taken, from the Financial Statements of the 
Parent Company, and its subsidiaries, duly certified and audited. 

In accordance with the above stated, in relationship to the Financial Statements, herewith mentioned, we declare the 
following:

1. The assets and liabilities, are stated and the recorded transactions, have been recorded, during said years.

2. All realized economic transactions, have been recognized.

3. The assets represent rights, and liabilities represent obligations, obtained or under the responsibility of the Companies.

4. All elements have been recognized, in the appropriate amounts, and in accordance with the Financial Information 
Norms, applicable in Colombia.

5. The economic transactions, that impact the Companies, have been correctly classified, described, and disclosed.

6. The Financial Statements and Notes, do not contain misstatements, errors, differences or material inaccuracies, 
which could impact the financial position, equity, and operations of the Companies. Similarly, appropriate procedures, 
reporting systems, and control of the financial information, have been established, to insure accurate reporting to 
third–party users, of such.

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
*eneral Accountant 
T.P. 45056-T

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President  
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Certification of the Financial Statements  
Law 964 of 2005

Gentlemen
Shareholders
Grupo Nutresa S.A.
Medellín

The undersigned Legal Representative of Grupo Nutresa S.A.

CERTIFIES:

22 of February of 2019
 
That the Consolidated Financial Statements, and the operations of the Parent Company, and its subsidiaries, at December 
31, 2018 and 2017, do not contain any defects, differences, inaccuracies, or errors that impede the knowledge of the true 
and fair presentation, of the financial situation, of the same.

The foregoing, is stated, for purposes of compliance with Article 46 of Law 964 of 2005.

And is signed, as a record, on the 22nd day of the month of February of 2019
.

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President
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Separate Financial Position Statement 
At December 31st, 2018 and 2017 (values expressed in millions of Colombian Pesos)

Notes 2018  2017

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 1.086  $ 465
Trade and other accounts receivables 5  14.608  14.481
Other assets 6  1.131  402
Total current assets  $ 16.825  $ 15.348
Non-current assets
Trade and other accounts receivables 5  567  2.965
Investments in subsidiaries 7  4.991.464  4.872.188
Investments in associated 8  150.606  149.441
Other financial non-current assets 9  3.322.470  4.061.685
Deferred tax assets 10.4  1.412  5.227
Other assets 6  9  6
Total non-current assets  $ 8.466.528  $ 9.091.512
TOTAL ASSETS  $ 8.483.353  $ 9.106.860

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other account payables 11  74.322  69.855
Income tax and other taxes, payable 10.2  495  416
Employee benefits liabilities 12  745  1.205
Total current liabilities  $ 75.562  $ 71.476
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other accounts payables 11  158  158
Employee benefits liabilities 12  1.503  15.126
Deferred tax liabilities 10.4  8.239  9.449
Other liabilities  301  -
Total non-current liabilities  $ 10.201  $ 24.733
TOTAL LIABILITIES  $ 85.763  $ 96.209

EQUITY
Share capital issued 13.1  2.301  2.301
Paid-in-capital 13.1  546.832  546.832
Reserves 13.2  3.915.685  3.746.020
Retained earnings 13.2  3  3
Other comprehensive income, accumulated 14  3.422.608  4.285.216
Earnings for the period   510.161  430.279
TOTAL EQUITY  $ 8.397.590  $ 9.010.651
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  $ 8.483.353  $ 9.106.860

The Notes are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements.

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
*eneral Accountant 
Professional Card No. 45056-T

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
External Auditor – Professional Card  No. 167200-T
Designed by PwC Contadores y Auditores Ltda.
(See attached opinion) 

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President
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Separate Comprehensive ,ncome Statement  
From January 1st to December 31st (values expressed in millions of Colombian Pesos) 

Notes 2018  2017

Operating ,ncome $ 515.387 434.312
Portfolio dividends 9   57.649  $ 54.204
Share of profit, for the period of subsidiaries 7  459.115  374.306
Share of profit, for the period of associates 8  (1.377)  5.802
Gross profit $ 515.387  $ 434.312
Administrative expenses  (3.771)  (4.077)
Exchange differences on operating assets and liabilities  (3)  (1)
Other operating income, net  2.094  3.901

Operating profit $ 513.707 434.135
Financial income  4  4
Financial expenses  (1.152)  (1.419)
,ncome before tax $ 512.559  $ 432.720
Current income tax  (181)  (84)
Deferred income tax  (2.217)  (2.357)

Net profit for the period $ 510.161 $ 430.279

Earnings per share (*)
Basic, attributable to controlling interest (in Colombian Pesos)  1.108,75  935,14
(*) Calculated on 460.123.458 shares, which have not been modified during the period covered by these 
Financial Statements

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
,tems that are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial (losses)/gains of defined benefit plans 12.1  1.102  709
Equity investments measured at fair value 9  (803.165)             252.401
Income tax from items that will not be reclassified  (523)                   (234)
Total items that are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss $ (802.586)  $ 252.876
,tems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss:
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries 7  (59.701)  132.884
Share of other comprehensive income of associates 8   (458)  487
Income tax from items that will be reclassified  137  (160)
Total items that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss: $ (60.022)  $ 133.211
Other comprehensive income, net taxes  $ (862.608)  $ 386.087
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD  $ (352.447)  $ 816.366

The Notes are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements.

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
*eneral Accountant 
Professional Card No. 45056-T
(See attached certification)

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
External Auditor – Professional Card No. 167200-T
Designed by PwC Contadores y Auditores Ltda. 
(See attached opinion) 

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President
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Separate Change in Equity Statement 
From January 1st to December 31st (values expressed in millions of Colombian Pesos)
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Balance at 'ecember �1st, 201� 2.301 546.832 3.746.020 3 430.279 4.285.216 9.010.651
Profit for the period - - - - 510.161 - 510.161
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - - (862.608) (862.608)
Comprehensive income for the period - - - - 510.161 (862.608) (352.447)
Transfer to income, in prior years - - - 430.279 (430.279) - -
Cash dividends (Note 9) - - (64.218) (196.396) - - (260.614)
Appropriation of reserves - - 233.883 (233.883) - - -
Balance at 'ecember �1st, 201� 2.301 546.832 3.915.685 3 510.161 3.422.608 8.397.590

Balance at 'ecember �1st, 2016    2.301  546.832  3.592.671  -    399.098  3.899.132  8.440.034 
Profit for the period - - - - 430.279 430.279
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - 386.087 386.087
Comprehensive income for the period - - - - 430.279 386.087 816.366
Transfer to accumulated results - - - 399.098 (399.098) - -
Cash dividends (Note 9) - - (2.761) (242.945) - - (245.706)
Appropriation of reserves - - 156.153 (156.153) - - -
Tax on wealth (Note 8) - - (43) - - - (43)
Realization of other comprehensive income - - - 3 (3) -
Balance at 'ecember �1st, 201� 2.301 546.832 3.746.020 3 430.279 4.285.216 9.010.651

 The Notes are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
External Auditor – Professional Card  No. 167200-T
Designed by PwC Contadores y Auditores Ltda.
(See attached opinion) 

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
*eneral Accountant
Professional Card No. 45056-T

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President
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Separate Cash-flow Statement 
From January 1st to December 31st (values expressed in millions of Colombian Pesos)

2018  2017

Cash flow from operating activities
Dividends received (Note 7 – 9)  $ 332.996 265.755
Dividends paid (Note 13.3)  (256.194) (240.744)
Collection from goods and services  2.073 2.575
Payments to suppliers for goods and services  (2.042) (1.788)
Payments to and on behalf of employees  (21.257) (6.548)
Income taxes on reimbursed (paid) gains  (317) 391
Other cash inflows  15.627 1.500
Net cash flow from operating activities $ 70.886 21.141

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of equity of associates and joint ventures (Note 8)  (3.000) (20.717)
Payments to third parties, to obtain control of subsidiaries (Note 7)  (3.221) -
Purchases and sales of other equity instruments (Note 9)  (63.950) -
Other cash inflows  35 126
Net cash flows used in investment activities $ (70.136) (20.591)

Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid  (46) -
Other cash outflows  (82) (126)
Net cash flow used in financing activities $ (128) (126)

,ncrease in cash and cash equivalents from activities $ 622 424
Net foreign exchange differences  (1) (1)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  621 423
Cash and cash equivalents, at the beginning of the period  465 42
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  $ 1.086 465

The Notes are an integral part of the Separate Financial Statements.

Jaime León Montoya Vásquez
*eneral Accountant 
Professional Card No. 45056-T

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
External Auditor – Professional Card No. 167200-T
Designed by PwC Contadores y Auditores Ltda. 
(See attached opinion) 

Carlos Ignacio Gallego Palacio
President
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Notes for the Separate  
Financial Statements 
For the period between January 1st and December 31st of 2018 and 2017

 (Values are expressed as millions of Colombian Pesos, except for the values in foreign currency, exchange rates, and number of shares).

NOTE 1. 
Corporate information

1.1. Entity and corporate purpose 
Grupo Nutresa S.A., (hereinafter referred to as: Grupo Nutresa, 
the Company, or Nutresa, indistinctly), is a corporation of Colom-
bian nationality, incorporated on April 12, 1920, with its head-
quarters in the City of Medellin, Colombia; its terms expire on 
April 12, 2050. The Corporate Business Purpose consists of the 
investment or application of available resources, in organized 
enterprises, under any of the forms permitted by law, whether 
domestic or foreign, and aimed at the use of any legal economic 
activity, either tangible or intangible assets, with the purpose of 
safeguarding its capital.

The Company is the Parent of Grupo Nutresa, constitutes 
an integrated and diversified food industry group that operates 
mainly in Colombia and Latin America.

NOTE 2. 
Basis of preparation
The Separate Financial Statements of Grupo Nutresa, for the 
period from January 1st to December 31st, 2018, have been pre-
pared in accordance with the Accounting and Financial Informa-
tion Standards, accepted in Colombia, based on the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), together with its interpre-
tations, conceptual framework, the foundation for conclusions, 
and the application guidelines authorized and issued, by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), until 2016, and 
other legal provisions, defined by the Financial Superintendence 
of Colombia.

2.1. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The Separate Financial Statements have been prepared on a his-
torical cost basis, except for the measurements at fair value of cer-
tain financial instruments, as described in the accounting policies, 
herewith. The book value of recognized assets and liabilities, that 
have been designated as hedged items, in fair value hedges, and 
which would otherwise be accounted for at amortized cost and are 
adjusted to record changes in the fair values, attributable to those 
risks that are covered under ţEffective hedgesŤ.

2.2. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY
The Separate Financial Statements are presented in Colombian 
Pesos, which is both the functional and presentation currency 
of Grupo Nutresa. These figures are expressed in millions of 
Colombian Pesos, except for basic earnings per share and the 

representative market exchange rates, which are expressed in 
Colombian Pesos, as well as, other currencies (E.g. USD, Euros, 
Pounds Sterling, et al.), and which are expressed as monetary 
units.

2.3.  CLASSIFICATION OF ITEMS IN CURRENT AND 
NON-CURRENT

Grupo Nutresa presents assets and liabilities, in the Statement 
of Financial Position, classified as current and non-current. An 
asset is classified as current, when the entity: expects to real-
ize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, within its normal 
operating cycle, holds the asset primarily, for negotiating pur-
poses, expects to realize the asset within twelve months, after 
the reporting period is reported, or the asset is cash or cash 
equivalent, unless the asset is restricted for a period of twelve 
months, after the close of the reporting period.  All other assets 
are classified as non-current.  A liability is classified as current 
when the entity expects to settle the liability, within its normal 
operating cycle, or holds the liability primarily for negotiating 
purposes.

NOTE 3. 
Significant accounting policies
Grupo Nutresa applies the following significant accounting poli-
cies in preparing its Financial Statements:

3.1. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
A subsidiary is an entity controlled by one of the companies that 
make up Grupo Nutresa Control exists when any of the Group 
companies has the power to direct the relevant activities of the 
subsidiary, which are generally: the operating activities and the 
financing to obtain benefits from its activities, and is exposed, or 
has rights, to those variable yields.

Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Separate 
Condensed Financial Statements of Grupo Nutresa, using the 
equity method, according to the established regulations in 
Colombia, under which the investment is initially recorded at 
cost, and is adjusted with the changes in participation of Grupo 
Nutresa, over the net assets of the subsidiary, after the date of 
acquisition, minus any impairment loss of the investment. The 
losses of the subsidiary, that exceed Grupo Nutresa’s participa-
tion in the investment, are recognized as provisions, only when 
it is probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits 
and there is a legal or implicit obligation.
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3.2.  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND  
JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which Grupo Nutresa has signif-
icant influence over financial and operating policies, without 
having control or joint control.

A joint venture is an entity that Grupo Nutresa controls 
jointly with other participants, where, together, they maintain 
a contractual agreement that establishes joint control over the 
relevant activities of the entity.

At the date of acquisition, the excess acquisition cost, over 
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities, and con-
tingent liabilities, assumed by the associate or joint venture, is 
recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is included in the book value of 
the investment and is not amortized, nor is it individually tested 
for impairment.

Investments in associates or joint ventures are measured 
in the Separate Financial Statements, using the equity method, 
under which the investment is initially recorded at cost, and is 
adjusted with changes of the participation of Grupo Nutresa, 
over the net assets of the associate or joint venture after the date 
of acquisition minus any impairment loss on the investment. 
The losses of the associate or joint venture, that exceed Grupo 
Nutresa’s shares in the investment, are recognized as a provision, 
only when it is probable that there will be an outflow of economic 
benefit and there is a legal or implicit obligation.

Where the equity method is applicable, adjustments are 
made to homologize the accounting policies of the associate or 
joint venture with those of Grupo Nutresa  The portion that cor-
responding to Grupo Nutresa of profit and loss, obtained from 
the measurement of at fair value, at the date of acquisition, is 
incorporated into the Financial Statements, and gains and losses 
from transactions between Grupo Nutresa and the associate or 
joint venture, to the extent of Grupo Nutresa´s participation in 
the associate or joint venture. The equity method is applied from 
the date of the acquisition, to the date that significant influence 
or joint control over the entity is lost.

The portion of profit and loss, of an associate or joint venture, 
is presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, for the 
period, net of taxes and non-controlling interest in the subsid-
iaries of the associate or joint venture. The portion of changes, 
recognized directly in equity and other comprehensive income 
of the associate or joint venture, is presented in the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and other comprehensive income. Cash divi-
dends received, from the associate or joint ventures, are recog-
nized by reducing the book value of the investment.

Grupo Nutresa periodically analyzes the existence of impair-
ment indicators and, if necessary, recognizes impairment losses of 
the associate or joint venture investment. Impairment losses are 
recognized in profit and loss and are calculated as the difference 
between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture, 
(which is the higher of the two values, between the value in use 
and its fair value minus cost to sell), and the book value.

When the significant influence over an associate or joint con-
trol is lost, Grupo Nutresa measures and recognizes any retained 

residual investment, at fair value. The difference between the 
book amount of the associate or joint venture, (taking into 
account the relevant items of other comprehensive income) and 
the fair value of the retained residual investment at its value from 
sale is recognized in profit and loss, for the period.

3.3.  FOREIGN CURRENCY
Transactions made in a currency other than the functional cur-
rency of the Company are translated, using the exchange rate 
at the date of the transaction. Subsequently, monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated, 
using the exchange rates at the closing of the Financial State-
ments and taken from the information published by the oƻcial 
body responsible for certifying this information. Non-monetary 
items, that are measured at fair value, are translated, using the 
exchange rates on the date when its fair value is determined, and 
non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost, are 
translated using the exchange rates determined on the date of 
the original transaction. 

All exchange differences, arising from operating assets and 
liabilities, are recognized on the Income Statement, as part 
of income and operating expenses.  Exchange differences in 
other assets and liabilities are recognized as income or expense, 
except for, monetary items that provide an effective hedge, for 
a net investment in a foreign operation, and from investments 
in shares classified as fair value through equity. These items 
and their tax impact are recognized in “Other comprehensive 
incomeŤ, until disposal of the net investment, at which time are 
recognized in profit and loss.

3.4.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents, in the Statement of Financial Posi-
tion and Statement of Cash Flows, include cash on hand and 
banks, highly liquid investments readily convertible to a known 
amount of cash, and subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in its value, with a maturity of three months or less from the date 
of purchase. These items are initially recognized at historical cost 
and are restated to recognize its fair value at the date of each 
accounting year.

3.5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Policies applicable as of January 1, 2018
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial 
asset of one entity and, simultaneously, to a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabili-
ties are initially recognized at fair value, plus (minus) the transac-
tion costs directly attributable, except for those who are subse-
quently measured at fair value.

At initial recognition, Grupo Nutresa classifies its financial 
assets for subsequent measurement, at amortized cost or fair 
value, depending on Grupo Nutresa’s business model for the 
administration of financial assets, and the characteristics of the 
contractual cash flows of the instrument; or as derivatives desig-
nated as hedging instruments, in an effective hedge, accordingly.
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(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost, 
using the effective interest rate, if the asset is held within a 
business model whose objective is to keep the contractual cash 
flows, and the contractual terms of the same grants, on spe-
cific dates, cash flows that are solely for payments of principal 
and interest, on the value of outstanding capital. The carrying 
amount of these assets is adjusted by any estimate of expected 
and recognized credit loss.  Income from interest of these finan-
cial assets is included in ţinterest and similar incomeŤ, using the 
effective interest rate method.

Grupo Nutresa has determined that the business model for 
accounts receivable is to receive the contractual cash flows, 
which is why they are included in this category, the Group eval-
uates whether the cash flows of the financial instruments repre-
sent only capital and interest payments. In making this assess-
ment, the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows 
are consistent with a basic loan agreement.  That is, the interest 
includes only the consideration for the value of money over time, 
credit risk, other basic credit risks, and a profit margin consis-
tent with a basic loan agreement. When the contractual terms 
introduce a risk, or volatility exposure, and are inconsistent with a 
basic loan agreement, the related financial asset is classified and 
measured at fair value, through profit or loss.

Accounts receivable, from sales are measured by the value 
of income, minus the value of the expected impairment losses, 
according to the model defined by the Group. These accounts 
receivable are recognized, when all the risks and benefits are 
transferred to the third party.

(ii) Financial assets measured at fair value with changes in 
other comprehensive income
The financial assets, held for the collection of contractual cash 
flows and for sales of the assets, where the cash flows of the assets 
represent only payments of principal and interest, and which are 
not designated at fair value, through profit or loss, are measured at 
fair value with changes in other comprehensive income. 

For investments in equity instruments, that are not held for 
trading purposes, Grupo Nutresa chooses to irrevocably present 
gains or losses, from fair value measurement, in other compre-
hensive income. In the disposal of investments, at fair value, 
through other comprehensive income, the accumulated value of 
gains or losses is transferred directly to retained earnings and is 
not reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends received in cash, from 
these investments, are recognized in profit or loss for the period. 

The fair values of share price investments are based on the 
valid quoted prices. If the market for a financial instrument is not 
active (or the instrument is not quoted on a stock exchange), the 
Group establishes its fair value using valuation techniques. These 
techniques include the use of the values observed in recent 
transactions, realized under the terms of free competition, the 
reference to other instruments that are substantially similar, 
analyses of discounted cash flows, and option models, mak-
ing maximum use of market information, and giving the lesser 

degree of confidence possible, in internal information specific to 
the entity.

(iii)  Financial assets measured at fair value 
The financial assets, different from those measured at amor-
tized cost or at fair value, with changes in other comprehensive 
income, are subsequently measured at fair value, with changes 
recognized in profit and loss. A loss or gain on a debt instrument, 
that is subsequently measured at fair value, through profit or 
loss and is not part of a hedging relationship, is recognized in 
the Income Statement, for the period in which it arises, unless 
it arises from instruments of debt that were designated at fair 
value, or that are not held for trading.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost
The Group evaluates, in a prospective manner, the expected 
credit losses associated with the debt instruments, recorded at 
amortized cost and at fair value, through changes in other com-
prehensive income, as well as with the exposure derived from 
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Group 
recognizes a provision for losses, at each presentation date. The 
measurement of the expected credit losses reflects: 

• An unbiased and weighted probability quantity, that is 
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes; 

• The value of money in time; and 
• Reasonable and supported information, available without 

incurring undue costs or efforts, on the filing date, with 
regard to past events, current conditions, and future eco-
nomic condition forecasts.

(v) Derecognition
A financial asset, or a part of it, is derecognized, from the State-
ment of Financial Position, when it is sold, transferred, expires, 
or Grupo Nutresa loses control over the contractual rights or the 
cash flows of the instrument. A financial liability, or a portion of 
it, is derecognized from the Statement of Financial Position, when 
the contractual obligation has been settled, or has expired. When 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another, from the same 
counterparty, on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liabil-
ity, and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference, in 
the respective book value, is recognized in the Comprehensive 
Income Statement.

(vi) Modification
In some circumstances, the renegotiation, or modification of 
the contractual cash flows, of a financial asset, may lead to the 
derecognition of an existing financial asset. When the modifica-
tion of a financial asset results in the derecognition of an existing 
financial asset, and the subsequent recognition of a modified 
financial asset, it is considered a new financial asset.  Accordingly, 
the date of the modification will be treated as the date of initial 
recognition, of that financial asset. 
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(vii) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost, using the effective interest rate. Financial liabilities include 
balances with suppliers and accounts payable, financial obliga-
tions, and other derivative financial liabilities. This category also 
includes those derivative financial instruments, taken by the 
Group, that are not designated as hedging instruments, in effec-
tive hedging.

Financial obligations are classified as such, for obligations 
that are obtained by resources, be it from credit institutions or 
other financial institutions, in the country or abroad.

Financial liabilities are written-off in accounts when they are 
canceled, that is, when the obligation specified in the contract is 
met, canceled, or expires.

(viii) Off-setting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, so that the net 
value is reported on the Statement of Financial Position of the 
Separate, only if (i) there is, at present, a legally enforceable right 
to offset the amounts recognized, and (ii) there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabil-
ities, simultaneously. 

Policies applicable until December 31, 2017
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial 
asset of one entity and, simultaneously, to a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabili-
ties are initially recognized at fair value plus (minus) the transac-
tion costs directly attributable, except for those who are subse-
quently measured at fair value.

At initial recognition, Grupo Nutresa S.A. classifies its finan-
cial assets for subsequent measurement at amortized cost or 
fair value, depending on Grupo Nutresa’s business model for the 
administration of financial assets and the characteristics of the 
contractual cash flows of the instrument; or as derivatives desig-
nated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, accordingly.

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost, 
using the effective interest rate, if the asset is held within a 
business model whose objective is to keep the contractual cash 
flows, and the contractual terms, on specific dates, cash flows 
that are solely for payments of principal and interest on the value 
of outstanding capital. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Grupo 
Nutresa designates a financial asset as irrevocably measured at 
fair value through profit and loss.

Grupo Nutresa has determined that the business model for 
accounts receivable is to receive the contractual cash flows, 
which is why they are included in this category.

(ii) Financial assets measured at fair value
The financial assets, different from those measured at amor-
tized cost, are subsequently measured at fair value, with changes 
recognized in profit and loss. +owever, for investments in equity 

instruments that are not held for trading purposes, Grupo 
Nutresa S.A. irrevocably chooses to present gains or losses on the 
fair value measurement in ţother comprehensive incomeŤ. Upon 
disposal of investments at fair value, through “other comprehen-
sive incomeŤ, the accumulated value of the OCI is transferred 
directly to retained earnings, and is not reclassified to profit and 
loss, in that period. Cash dividends, received from these invest-
ments, are recognized in the profit and loss of that period. 

The fair values of quoted investments are based on the valid 
quoted prices.

Financial assets measured at fair value are not tested for 
impairment.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are assessed for 
indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets 
are impaired, when there exists, objective evidence, that, as a result 
of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the 
financial asset, the estimated future flows of the financial asset, (or 
group of financial assets) have been impacted.

The criteria used to determine if there is objective evidence 
of impairment losses, includes:

• significant financial diƻculty of the issuer or counterparty 
• non-payment of principal and interest
• probability that the lender will declare bankruptcy or finan-

cial reorganization.

The amount of the impairment is the difference between the 
book value of the asset, and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective rate of the 
financial asset. The book value of the asset is reduced, and the 
amount of the loss is recognized in profit and loss, for the period.

(iv) Derecognition
A financial asset, or a part of it, is derecognized from the State-
ment of Financial Position when it is sold, transferred, expires, or 
Grupo Nutresa loses control over the contractual rights or the 
cash flows of the instrument. A financial liability, or a portion 
of it, is derecognized from the Statement of Financial Position, 
when the contractual obligation has been settled, or has expired. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another, from 
the same counterparty, on substantially different terms, or the 
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification, it is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the dif-
ference in the respective book value is recognized in the profit 
and loss, for the period.

(v) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost, using the effective interest rate. Financial liabilities include: 
balances with suppliers and accounts payable, financial obli-
gations, and other derivative financial liabilities. This category 
also includes those derivative financial instruments taken by the 
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Group, that are not designated as hedging instruments, in effec-
tive hedging risks.

(vi) Off-setting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, so that the 
net value is reported on the Statement of Financial Position, 
only if (i) there is, at present, a legally enforceable right to offset 
the amounts recognized, and (ii) there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities, 
simultaneously. 

3.6. TAXES
This heading includes the value of mandatory general-nature 
taxation in favor of the State, by way of private closeouts, that 
are based on the taxes of the fiscal year, and responsibility of 
each company, according to the tax norms of national and ter-
ritorial governing entities, in the countries where Grupo Nutresa 
operate.

a. Income tax  
(i) Current
Current assets and liabilities, generated from the income tax, for 
the period, are measured by the values expected to be recovered 
or paid to the taxation authorities. Expenses for income tax is 
recognized under current tax, in accordance with the tax clear-
ance, between taxable incomes and accounting profit and loss, 
impacted by the rate of income tax in the current year, in accor-
dance with the effective tax rules in each country. Taxes rates and 
tax norms or laws used to compute these values are those that 
are approved at the end of the reporting period, over which it is 
reported. Current assets and liabilities, from income tax are com-
pensated for, if related to the same Fiscal Authority, and whose 
intention is to settle for a net value or realize the asset, and settle 
the liability, simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred
Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method 
and is calculated on temporary differences between the taxable 
bases of assets and liabilities in and book value. Deferred tax lia-
bilities are generally recognized for all temporary tax differences 
imposed, and all of the deferred tax assets are recognized, for 
all temporary deductible differences, future compensation of tax 
credits, and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is likely there 
will be availability of future tax profit, against which, they can be 
attributed. Deferred taxes are not subject to financial discount.

Deferred asset and liability taxes are not recognized, if a tem-
porary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or 
liability, in a transaction that is not a business combination, and 
at the time of the transaction, it impacted neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit and loss; and in the case of deferred tax 
liability, arising from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The deferred tax liabilities, related to investments in 
associates, and interests in joint ventures, are not recognized 
when the timing of the reversal of temporary differences can 

be controlled, and it is probable that said differences will not 
reverse in the near future, and the deferred tax assets related 
to investments in associates, and interests in joint ventures 
are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the 
temporary differences will reverse in the near future, and it is 
likely the availability of future tax profit, against which these 
deductible differences, will be charged. Deferred tax liabilities, 
related to goodwill, are recognized only to the extent that it is 
probable that the temporary differences will be reversed in the 
future.

The book value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that suƻcient taxable profit will be available for use, in 
part or in totality, or a part of the asset, from said tax. Unrecog-
nized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date 
and are recognized, to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit income is likely to allow for their recovery.

Assets and liabilities from deferred taxes are measured at the 
tax rates, that are expected to be applicable, in the period when 
the asset is realized, or the liability is settled, based on income 
tax rates and norms, that were approved at the date of filing, or 
whose approval will be nearing completion, by that date.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit and loss, except when 
relating to items not recognized in profit and loss, in which case 
will be presented in ţOther comprehensive incomeŤ, or directly 
in equity.

b. Tax on wealth
The tax burden of the ţwealth taxŤ was originated, from possession 
of the same to the March 1st of the years 2015, 2016, and 2017, 
by taxpayers. Therefore, those taxpayers with liquid equity, whose 
value exceeds $1,000, should determine their tax under the con-
ditions established, in the tax regulations.

According to the provisions of Article 6 of Law 1739 of 2014, 
and additionally, Article 297-2 of the Tax Statute, the accrual of 
wealth tax will take place on January 1st of the years 2015, 2016, 
and 2017, and may be allocated to capital reserves without affect-
ing net income, in accordance with Article 10 of the same law.

3.7.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
a. Short-term benefits
They are, (other than termination benefits), benefits expected to 
be settled in its totality, before the end of the following twelve 
months (12), at the end of the annual period, of which the services 
rendered, by employees, is reported. Short-term benefits are rec-
ognized to the extent that the employee renders the service, to 
the expected value to be paid.

b. Other long-term benefits
Long-term employee benefits, (that differ from post-employ-
ment benefits and termination benefits), that do not expire within 
twelve (12) months, after the end of the annual period in which 
the employee renders services, are remunerated, such as long-
term benefits, the variable compensation system, and retroactive 
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severance interest. The cost of long-term benefits is distributed 
over the time measured between the employee starting date, and 
the expected date of when the benefit is received. These benefits 
are projected to the payment date and are discounted with the 
projected unit credit method.

c. Pensions and other post-employment benefits
(i) Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans are plans for post-employment benefits, 
in which Grupo Nutresa has a legal or implicit obligation, of the 
payment of benefits. 

The cost of this benefit is determined by the projected unit 
credit method. The liability is measured annually, by the present 
value of expected future payments required to settle the obliga-
tions, arising from services rendered by employees, in the cur-
rent period and prior periods. 

Updates of the liability for actuarial gains and losses are rec-
ognized in the Statement of Financial Position, against retained 
earnings through ţOther comprehensive incomeŤ. These items 
will not be reclassified to profit and loss, in subsequent peri-
ods. The cost of past and present services, and net interest on 
the liability, is recognized in profit and loss, distributed among 
cost of sales and administrative expenses, sales and distribution, 
likewise as are gains and losses by reductions in benefits and 
non-routine settlements. 

Interest on the liability is calculated by applying the discount 
rate, on said liability.

3.8.  PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  
AND ASSETSS

a. Provisions
Provisions are recognized when, as a result of a past event, the 
Company has a present legal or implicit obligation to a settle-
ment, and requires an outflow of resources, are considered 
probable, and can be estimated with certainty.

In cases where Grupo Nutresa expects the provision to be 
reimbursed in whole, or in part, the reimbursement is recognized 
as a separate asset, only in cases where such reimbursement is 
virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at best estimate of the disburse-
ment of the expenditure required to settle the present obliga-
tion. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, net of all reimbursement. 
The increase in the provision, due to the passage of time, is rec-
ognized as interest expense.

b. Contingent liabilities
Possible obligations, arising from past events, and whose exis-
tence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occur-
rence of one more uncertain future events, not wholly within 
the control of Grupo Nutresa, or present obligations arising from 
past events, are not likely, but are possible that an outflow of 
resources including economic benefits is required to settle the 

obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
with suƻcient reliability, are not recognized in the Statement 
of Financial Position and are, instead, revealed as contingent 
liabilities.

c. Contingent assets
Possible assets, arising out of past events and whose existence 
will be confirmed only by the occurrence, or possibly by the 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events, which 
are not entirely under the control Grupo Nutresa, are not rec-
ognized in the Statement of Financial Position, and are however, 
disclosed as contingent assets when it is a probable occurrence. 
When the said contingent is certain, the asset and the associated 
income, are recognized for that period.

3.9. REVENUE
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be 
measured reliably.

The specific recognition criteria listed below, must also be 
met for revenue to be recognized:

a. Dividend income
This is recognized when Grupo Nutresa’s right to receive pay-
ment is established, which is generally when the Shareholders 
approve the dividend, except when the dividend represents a 
recovery of investment costs. Dividend income is not recog-
nized, when payment is made to all Shareholders, in the same 
proportion in shares of the issuer.

b. The Equity Method
Under this method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, 
and is adjusted for changes in Grupo Nutresa’s shares of the net 
assets in subsidiaries and associates, after the acquisition date, 
and minus any impairment loss on the investment.

c. Interest
For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, inter-
est income, or expense, is recognized with the effective interest 
rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments, or those received through the 
expected life of the financial instrument, or in a shorter period, 
in the net book value of the financial asset or financial liability.

3.10.  FAIR VALUE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability, in an orderly transaction, between 
market participants, at the measurement date. The fair value of 
all financial assets and liabilities is determined at the date of pre-
sentation of the Financial Statements, for recognition or disclo-
sure in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Grupo Nutresa uses valuation techniques which are appro-
priate, under circumstances for which suƻcient information is 
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available to measure the fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair value is determined:
• Based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets 

or liabilities that the Company can access at the measure-
ment date (Level 1).

• Based on valuation techniques commonly used by market 
participants using variables other than the quoted prices 
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly (Level 2).

• Based on internal discount cash flow techniques or other 
valuation models, using estimated variables by Grupo 
Nutresa for the unobservable asset or liability, in the absence 
of variables observed in the market (Level 3).

Judgments include data such as liquidity risk, credit risk, and 
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could 
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

3.11.  EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit and loss 
attributable to ordinary equity holders, by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

The average number of shares outstanding, for the periods 
ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, is 460,123,458.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting, profit 
and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders, and the weighted 
average number of shares of dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.12.  RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OR MATERIALITY
Information is material or has relative importance, if it can, indi-
vidually, or collectively, influence the economic decisions taken 
by users, based on the Financial Statements. Materiality depends 
on the size and nature of error or inaccuracy and is prosecuted 
depending on the particular circumstances in which they are 
produced. The size or nature of the item, or a combination of 
both, could be the determining factor.

3.13.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Instruments
The Company has adopted IFRS 9, issued by the IASB in July 
2014, considering the transition date as January 1, 2018, which 
resulted in changes in the accounting policies and adjustments 
to the amounts, previously recognized in the Financial State-
ments, primarily in the determination of the expected loss. 

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9, the 
Company decided not to restate the comparative figures. Any 
adjustments to the book values of financial assets and liabilities, 
at the transition date, were recognized in the accumulated earn-
ings, at the opening of the current period.

Consequently, for the disclosures of Notes, the amendments 
generated from the disclosures of IFRS 7, have only been applied 
to the current period. The period of comparative information 
discloses the revelations realized in the previous year. 

The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in our 
accounting policies for the recognition and measurement of the 
impairment of financial assets. As of January 1, 2018, there is no 
impact from adoption of IFRS 9.

3.14.  NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
ON INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL 
REPORTING STANDARDS: NEW STANDARDS, 
MODIFICATIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
INCORPORATED INTO THE ACCOUNTING 
FRAMEWORK ACCEPTED IN COLOMBIA, 
WHOSE APPLICATION MUST BE JANUARY 1, 
2019

Decree 2483 of December 28, 2018 compiled and updated the 
technical framework of the Accounting and Financial Information 
Standards, accepted in Colombia, which had been incorporated 
by Decrees 2420 of 2015, 2496 of 2015, 2131 of 2016, and 2170 
of 2017, including a new standard issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), to be applied as of January 1, 
2019, although its application could be effectuated, in advance.

IFRS 16 Leases
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 
16, with an effective date of application of January 1, 2019.

IFRS 16 replaces existing guidance for the accounting of 
leases, including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining if a contract 
contains a lease, SIC 15 incentives in operating leases, and SIC 27 
evaluation of the substance of transactions, involving the legal 
form of a lease.

IFRS 16 introduces a single accounting record model of lease 
agreements, in the Statement of Financial Position, for lessees. 
A lessee recognizes an asset for right-of-use, representing the 
right-of-use the asset taken as a lease and a liability for the 
right-of-use for lease, representing its obligation to make the 
lease payments. There are optional exemptions for short-term 
leases, or leases of very low-value assets. The accounting treat-
ment of lease agreements, for lessors, remains similar to current 
accounting standards, in which the lessor classifies leases as 
financial or operating leases.

For the purpose of applying this standard, the nature of the 
expenses, corresponding to operating lease contracts, as lessee 
will change with IFRS 16, from lease expenses to amortization 
charges, of the rights-of-use of the assets, in addition to leasing 
expenses financial liabilities arising from the lease liabilities, for the 
rights-of-use, of the aforementioned assets.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty regarding the Treatment  
of Income Taxes
IFRIC 23 was issued in 0ay 2017. This interpretation clarifies how 
to apply the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 
12, when there is uncertainty regarding the treatment of income 
tax. In this circumstance, an entity recognizes and measures its 
asset or liability, for deferred or current taxes, by applying the 
requirements of IAS 12, on the basis of taxable profit (tax loss), 
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tax bases, unused fiscal losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates 
determined by applying this interpretation.

The Company will evaluate the potential impacts of this inter-
pretation, in its Financial Statements, without having identified 
situations that may require changes in the Financial Statements.

NOTE 4. 
Judgments, estimates and significant 
accounting assumptions
The preparation of Grupo Nutresa’s Financial Statements 
requires that management must make judgments, accounting 
estimates, and assumptions that impact the amount of revenue 
and expenses, assets and liabilities, and related disclosures, as 
well as, the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the close of the 
reporting period. In this regard, the uncertainty of assumptions 
and estimates could impact future results that could require sig-
nificant adjustments to the carrying amounts recorded in books 
of the assets or liabilities impacted. 

In applying Grupo Nutresa’s accounting policies, Management 

has made the following judgments and estimates, which have 
significant impact on the amounts recognized in these Separate 
Financial Statements:

• Assessment of the existence of impairment indicators for 
assets.

• Choose, appropriately, the models, and assumptions, for the 
measurement of the expected credit loss.

• Assumptions used in the actuarial calculation of post-em-
ployment and long-term obligations with employees.

• Assumptions used to calculate the fair value of financial 
instruments.

• Recoverability of deferred tax assets.
• Determination of control, significant influence, or joint con-

trol of an investment.
Judgments and estimates made by the Administration of Nutresa 
Group, in the preparation of the Separated Financial Statements, 
at December 31, 2018, do not differ significantly from those 
realized at the year-end close, of the previous period, that is, 
December 31, 2017.

NOTE 5. 
Trade and other accounts receivables
The balance of trade receivables and other accounts receivable comprised the following items:

2018 2017
Accounts receivable from employees 18 19
Dividends receivable from third parties (Note 9) 14.498 6.185
Other accounts receivable, related parties 600 11.197
Other accounts receivable from third parties 59 45
Total debtors and accounts receivable 15.175 17.446
Current portion 14.608 14.481
Non-current portion 567 2.965

Table 1

NOTE 6. 
Other assets
Other assets are comprised of the following:

2018 2017

Other current assets

Taxes   566 344

Prepaid expenses (1)  565 42

Assets held for sale - 16

Total other current assets 1.131 402

Other non-current assets

Prepaid expenses (1) 9 6

Total other assets 1.140 408

Table 2

(1) The prepaid expenses relate mainly to services and insurance.
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NOTE 7. 
Investments in subsidiaries
The following represents the book values of the subsidiaries, of Grupo Nutresa, to the date of the period, over which is reported:

Book Value

% participation 2018 2017

Compañía de Galletas Noel S. A. S. 100% 1.302.208 1.256.658

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S. A. S. 100% 1.157.439 1.110.536

Tropical Coffee Company S. A. S. 100% 20.089 18.355

Industria Colombiana de Café S. A. S. 100% 568.716 559.465

Industria de Alimentos Zenú S. A. S. 100% 203.266 206.566

Inverlogy  S. A. S. (antes Litoempaques S. A. S.) (3) 100% 26.566 22.047

Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S. A. S. 100% 184.911 215.285

Molino Santa Marta S. A. S. 100% 73.157 84.737

Novaventa S. A. S. 93% 135.662 133.599

Pastas Comarrico S. A. S. 100% 29.280 26.715

Productos Alimenticios Doria S. A. S. 100% 101.848 136.209

Alimentos Cárnicos S. A. S. 100% 969.119 895.360

Setas Colombianas S. A. 94% 51.102 47.689

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates Perú S. A. 0,0% 10 11

La Recetta Soluciones Gastronómicas Integradas S. A. S. 70% 962 1.265

Gestión Cargo Zona Franca S. A. S. 100% 73.850 62.019

Comercial Nutresa S. A. S. 100% 28.252 23.695

Industrias Aliadas S. A. S. 83% 60.229 69.093

Opperar Colombia S. A. S. 100% 1.342 1.074

Servicios Nutresa S. A. S. 100% - 1.558

Fideicomiso Grupo Nutresa 100% 243 252

Productos Naturela S. A. S. (1) 60% 3.213 -

Sub total 4.991.464 4.872.188

Servicios Nutresa S. A. S.   (2) 100% (301) -

Total 4.991.163 4.872.188

Table 3

A detailed breakdown of the dividends received, and the result of the application of the Equity Method, on investments in subsidiaries, 
during the reporting periods, is as follows:

2018 2017

Dividends 
received

Share of 
Income for 
the Period

Share of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Dividends 
received

Share of 
Income for 
The Period

Share of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Compañía de Galletas Noel S. A. S. 45.815 119.271 (27.906) 43.197 122.716 (15.062)
Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S. A. S. 96.458 143.183 178 20.422 102.428 (27.203)

Tropical Coffee Company S. A. S. - 1.853 (119) - 1.781 29

Industria Colombiana de Café S. A. S. - 14.494 (5.243) 102.346 21.028 (24.345)

Industria de Alimentos Zenú S. A. S. 23.463 20.199 (36) 19.220 16.473 393

Inverlogy S. A. S. (antes Litoempaques S. A. S.)(3) - 4.476 43 - 217 52
Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de  
Colombia S. A. S. - (31.463) 1.088 - (14.231) 1.000

Molino Santa Marta S. A. S. 20.130 8.555 (5) - 5.268 217

Novaventa S. A. S. 30.334 36.274 (3.877) - 26.126 216

Pastas Comarrico S. A. S. - 2.565 - - 2.050 46

Productos Alimenticios Doria S. A. S. 50.309 15.063 885 - 9.434 676

Alimentos Cárnicos S. A. S. - 97.753 (23.994) - 67.495 (69.484)

Setas Colombianas S. A. 2.948 6.365 (4) 2.438 3.739 89

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates Perú S. A. 2 1 - - - -
La Recetta Soluciones Gastronómicas 
Integradas S. A. S. - (177) (126) - 102 4

Gestión Cargo Zona Franca S. A. S. - 11.831 - - 8.479 128
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Comercial Nutresa S. A. S. - 5.263 (706) - (4.378) 222

Industrias Aliadas S. A. S. 14.201 5.332 5 15.614 6.208 183

Opperar Colombia S. A. S. - 268 - - 227 -

Servicios Nutresa S. A. S. (2) - (1.974) 116 - (857) (59)

Fideicomiso Grupo Nutresa - (9) - - 1 14

Productos Naturela S. A. S. - (8) - - - -

Total 283.660 459.115             (59.701)      203.237           374.306             (132.884)

Table 4

1. In September 2018, a 60% stake, was obtained, via the 
acquisition of shares (capitalization), in the amount of 
$3.221, of Productos Naturela S. A. S., a company dedicated 
to the production and commercialization of healthy and 
functional foods. This acquisition is aligned with the pur-
pose of expansion towards innovative products, that benefit 
the health and nutrition of its consumers.

2. Corresponds to the investment with negative equity which 
is provisioned, and is presented in the Statement of Finan-
cial Position in other provisions.

3. As of March 2018, Litoempaques S.A.S., changed its cor-
porate name to Servicios Logypack S.A.S., and in Novem-
ber of 2018, the latter changed its corporate name to 
Inverlogy S. A. S.

There are no variations in the participation of Shareholders 
between December 2017 and December 2018.  The dividends 

received in subsidiaries, are recognizes as the lessor value 
of the investment, as part of the application of the equity 
method. At December 31, 2018, there no dividends receiv-
able (2017: $0).

Dividends received, from subsidiaries, generate an impact on 
cash flow in the amount of �283.660 (2017:�204.009, includes 
$ 772 that were pending collection in 2016 and were collected 
in 2017).

NOTE 8. 
Investments in associates
The following is a breakdown of the investments over which 
Grupo Nutresa has significant influence, and which are classified 
as associates:

Book Value 2018 2017

Country % 
participation 2018 2017

Share of 
Income for the 

Period 

Share of Other 
Comprehensive

Income o 
integral

Share of 
Income for 
the Period

Share of Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Associates

Bimbo de Colombia S. A. Colombia 40% 139.918  139.867 509 (458) 6.745 495

Estrella Andina S. A. S. Colombia 30% 10.688        9.574 (1.886) - (943) (8)

Total associates       150.606  149.441 (1.377) (458) 5.802 487

Table 5

Bimbo de Colombia S. A.
Bimbo de Colombia S.A. is a company domiciled in Tenjo, Colombia, 
and is dedicated primarily, to the manufacturing of baked goods.  

Estrella Andina S.A.S.
Estrella Andina S.A.S. is a simplified joint stock company, engaged 

in the marketing of ready-made meals in the cafeterias, in which 
Nutresa has a 30% stake, having as its majority Shareholder, 
Grupo Alsea, with an interest of 70%.

The movements of investments in associates, are as follows:

2018 2017

Opening balance 149.441 138.652

Increased of contributions (*) 3.000 4.500

Participation in profit and loss (1.377) 5.802

Participation comprehensive income (458) 487

Ending balance 150.606 149.441

Table 6
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Increase in contributions in associates and joint ventures 
(*) In September 2018, a capitalization was realized, in Estrella 

Andina S.A.S., in which Grupo Nutresa invested $3,000, 
without generating changes in the percentage of participa-
tion.  Also, in May 2017, an increase in capital was realized, 
in which, the Company invested $4,500, without generating 
changes in the percentage of participation. 

In January 2017, a payment was realized in the amount of 
$16.217, corresponding to the balance payable, from the cap-
italization realized in 2016, to Bimbo de Colombia S. A.

During the period covered by these Financial Statements, no 
dividends were received, from these investments.

Below, is the summarized financial information regarding the 
associated entities: 

2018 2017

Assets Liabilities Equity
Profit 

for the 
Period

Comprehensive 
Income for the 

Period
Assets Liabilities Equity

Profit 
for the 
Period

Comprehensive 
Income for the 

Period

Bimbo de Colombia S.A. 643.271 293.475 349.796 2.725 459 635.443 285.776 349.667 16.278 395

Estrella Andina S.A.S. 43.913 8.116 35.797 (5.588) - 35.391 3.307 32.084 (2.802) -

Table 7

None of the associates and joint ventures, held by the Group are 
listed on a stock market, and consequently, there are no quoted 
market prices for the investment.

NOTE 9. 
Other non-current financial assets
Grupo Nutresa classifies portfolio investments that are not held 
for trading, as financial instruments, measured at fair value 
through ţOther comprehensive incomeŤ.

The results for the period include income from dividends 
on these instruments, and which are recognized, by Nutresa, on 
the date that the right to receive future payments is established, 
which is the date of declaration of dividends by the issuing com-
pany. ţOther comprehensive incomeŤ includes changes in the 
fair value of these financial instruments.

The breakdown of financial instruments, is as follows:

Book Value Number of 
shares held

Participation as % in 
Total Ordinary Shares 2018 2017

Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S. A. 61.386.550 13,09% (2017-12,66%) 1.971.736 2.393.328

Grupo Argos S. A. 79.804.628 12,36% 1.348.698 1.666.321

Other companies 2.036 2.036

3.322.470 4.061.685

Table 8

2018 2017

Dividend income Losses of Fair Value 
Measurement Dividend income

Profit of 
Fair Value 

Measurement
Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S. A. 31.026 (485.543) 28.981 124.714

Grupo Argos S. A. 26.176 (317.622) 24.740 127.687

Other companies 447 - 483 -

57.649 (803.165) 54.204 252.401

Table 9

The value of the dividend per share, declared for 2018, by Grupo 
de Inversiones Suramericana S. A. was $518 (pesos), yearly per 
share.  These will be paid quarterly, in the amount of $129,50. 
For its part, Grupo Argos S. A. declared, in the month of April, 
dividends, in the amount of $328 (pesos), yearly, per share, to be 
paid quarterly, in the amount of $82.

For 2017, the annual value, per share, was $310 Pesos, 
($77.5 Pesos per quarter), for Grupo Argos S. A., and $488 Pesos, 
(received in 805,638 preference shares) for Grupo de Inversiones 
Suramericana S. A. 

Income from dividends, recognized for the first half of 2018, 

for portfolio investments, corresponds mainly to the total annual 
dividend, declared by the issuers, and no similar income for the 
remainder of the year is expected. In addition, in October 2018, 
dividend shares were received, from part of Grupo de Inver-
siones Suramericana S. A., in the amount of $263, equivalent 
to the investment realized in financial equity instruments in the 
amount of $63.950.

The dividends received generated an impact in cashflows of 
$49.336 (2017: 61.746).

At December 31, 2018, accounts receivable, from dividends 
of financial instruments, are �14.498 (2017: �6.185). 
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9.1.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF  
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of shares traded and that are classified as high 
trading volume is determined based on the price quoted on the 
Colombian Stock Exchange; this measurement is in the +ierarchy 
1, established by IFRS 13 for measuring fair value.  This category 

includes investments held by Grupo Nutresa in Grupo de Inver-
siones Suramericana S.A. and Grupo Argos S.A. This measure-
ment is realized monthly and generated losses of $871.316 
(2017: income $252.402), recognized in the other comprehen-
sive income.

The following is the value per share, used in the valuation of 
investments listed on the Colombian Stock Exchange:

Price per share (in Colombian Pesos) 2018 2017

Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S.A. 32.120  40.300 

Grupo Argos S.A. 16.900 20.880

Table 10

Investments in other companies classified in this category are 
measured at fair value on a non-recurrent basis, only when a 
market value is available.  The Company considers omission of 
recurrent measurement of these investments is immaterial for 
the presentation of Grupo Nutresa’s Financial Statements.

There have been no changes in the fair value hierarchy for 
the measurement of these investments, nor have there been 
changes in the valuation techniques used.

9.2. LIENS
At December 31, 2018, there were pledges of 22.103.000 (2017: 
30.775.000) shares of Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S. A., 
in favor of financial entities in Colombia, as collateral for obliga-
tions, contracted by Grupo Nutresa and its subsidiaries. 

NOTE 10. 
Income taxes and taxes payable

10.1.  APPLICABLE NORMS
The effective and applicable tax norms, state that nominal rates 
of income tax, for the Company are 33% and a surcharge of 4%. 

The tax deductions, applied in the Income Statement, may 
not exceed 25% of the income tax charged to the taxpayer, in the 
respective taxable year, with the possibility of applying the excess 
in the taxable period, following the one in which the donation 
was made, if the discount is to companies, belonging to the spe-
cial tax regime.

The terms of finality of the tax returns is 3 years. +owever, 
for companiesš subject to the transfer pricing regime, the finality 

will be 6 years, and the statements that originate or offset fiscal 
losses, will be final, in 12 years.

Fiscal losses, which did not expire for compensation with net 
revenue, in the tax returns of future periods, will be, as of the 
effective date of Law 1819 of 2016, and with a limit for compen-
sation of 12 years.

Through Article 137 of Law 1819 of 2016, the obligation 
was established, to maintain a system of control or conciliation 
of differences that arise between the new regulatory technical 
frameworks and the Colombian Tax Statute. For this, the Decree 
1998 of November 30, 2017 and Resolution 73 of December 29 
of 2017 that regulate the fiscal conciliation referred to in Law 
1819 of 2016 and that should be implemented in the year 2018 
to inform the taxable year 2017, as an integral part of the Income 
Statement of the same taxable year, were issued.

Additionally, in consideration of Article 108 of Law 1819 of 
2016 and Action 13 of the BEPS OECD/G20 project, Resolution 
71 of December 29, 2017 is issued, which establishes the proce-
dure for the presentation of the Country by Country Report, that 
is part of the standardized approach in three levels of the docu-
mentation on transfer prices and that will contain information 
relative to the global allocation of income and taxes, paid by the 
multinational group, and the indicators related to the economic 
activity, at a global level, corresponding to the 2016 taxable year, 
as a term of presentation in February of the year 2018.

10.2.  TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Tax assets are presented in the Statement of Financial Position, 
under ţother current assetsŤ and ţother non-current assetsŤ. The 
balance, includes:

2018 2017

Income tax and complementaries (1) 360 224

Other taxes 206 120

 Total current tax assets 566 344

Table 11

(1) Income tax assets and complementaries, corresponds to credit balances of  $360 (2017: $224).

328

Separate Financial Statements 



The current taxes payable balances include:

2018 2017

Sales tax payable 61 294

Withholding taxes, payable 112 43

Other taxes 322 79

 Total 495 416

Table 12

The Company applies the laws with professional judgment, 
to determine and recognize the provision for current tax and 
deferred income, on its Separate Financial Statements. The final 
tax determination depends on the new regulatory requirements, 
the existence of suƻcient taxable profit for the use of fiscal bene-
fits, as the treatment of untaxed income, and special deductions, 
according to the current regulations and applicable, and the 
analysis of favorability probability of expert opinions. The Com-
pany recognizes liabilities, for anticipated tax audits, observed 

based on estimates, if correspondent to payment of additional 
taxes. When the final tax outcome of these situations is different, 
from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences 
are charged to tax on current and deferred assets and liabilities, 
in the period in which this is determined.

10.3. INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Current income tax expenses and deferred tax are as follows:

2018 2017

Income tax 181 84

Total 181 84

Deferred taxes (*) 2.217 2.357

Total income tax expenses 2.398 2.441

Table 13

(*) The composition of the deferred income tax arises primarily from the recognition of labor and investment obligations.

10.4. DEFERRED INCOME TAX
2018 2017

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits 437 4.994

Tax losses 17 19

Tax credits 194 162

Debtors 718 -

Other assets 46 52

Total deferred tax assets 1.412 5.227

Deferred tax liabilities

Investments 7.212 8.491

Other liabilities 1.027 958

Total income tax liabilities 8.239 9.449

Net deferred tax liabilities 6.827 4.222

Table 14

Temporary differences, related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and interest in joint ventures, for which deferred tax liabilities 
have not been recognized, are $5.615.529 (2017: $6.014.880), whose deferred tax liability would be $1.684.658 (2017: $1.984.910).

The movement of deferred tax, during the period, was as follows:

2018 2017

Opening balance, net liabilities 4.222 1.471

Deferred income tax expenses recognized in profit and loss 2.217 2.357

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 388 394

Ending balance, deferred tax net liabilities 6.827 4.222

Table 15
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The income tax, relating to components of other comprehensive 
income, is determined by new measurements of benefit plans to 
employees of $523 (2017 $234), the participation in associates 
and joint ventures, accounted for by using the Equity Method, in 
the amount of $137 (2017 $160).

10.5. EFFECTIVE TAX RATES
In 2018, the effective rate is significantly below the theoretical 
rate, due mainly to untaxed income. Income received by Grupo 
Nutresa, corresponds primarily to dividends of non-taxed port-
folios and the recognition of the profits obtained by the subsid-
iary companies, and are recognized, in the Company’s Separate 
Financial Statements, through the equity method.

In addition, there are restricted tax deductions, such as the tax 

on the financial movement, that is only 50� deductible, and tax 
expenses, provisions, costs, and expenses of previous years, fines, 
and penalties, among others, for which tax deductions are not 
allowed.

In 2017, the effective rate is significantly below the theoreti-
cal rate, mainly due to tax revenues that are un-taxed and, there-
fore, constitute a permanent difference.

In addition, there are restricted tax deductions, such as the 
tax on the financial movement, that is only 50� deductible, and 
tax expenses, provisions, costs, and expenses of previous years, 
fines, and penalties, among others, for which tax deductions are 
not allowed.

Below is reconciliation, of both the applicable tax rate and 
the effective tax rates:

2018 2017
Value % Value %

Accounting profit 512.559 432.720

Tax expenses at applicable tax rates 169.145 33.00% 147.125 34.00%

Non-taxed portfolio dividends (19.024) (3.71%) (18.429) (4.26%)

Untaxed income from the Equity Method (151.054) (29.47%) (129.226) (29.86%)

Other tax effects 3.331 0.65% 2.971 0.68%

Total tax expenses, net (Note 10.3) 2.398 0.47% 2.441 0.56%

Table 16

10.6. TAX ON WEALTH
In accordance with that established, in Article 6 of Law 1739 of 
2014, which adds Article 297-2, of the tax statute, the causation 
of wealth tax was realized on January 1st of the years 2015, 
2016, and 2017, and may be charged to equity reserves, with-
out impacting net income, in accordance with Article 10 of the 
same law. For the taxable year 2018, said tax is not applicable. At 
December 31st, 2017, $43, was recognized in reserves, at dis-
posal to the highest social organ.

10.7.  INFORMATION ON CURRENT LEGAL  
PROCEEDINGS

The Company files a lawsuit for the lack of knowledge of deduc-
tions and compensation for tax losses, in tax returns for the 
taxable years 2008 and 2009. Due to lack of knowledge, the 

Administration rejected the rebates, in favor of those taxable 
years, which made the necessary lawsuit against the resolutions 
that decided the rejection. 

10.8.  TAX RULES APPLICABLE FROM  
THE YEAR 2019

Until taxable year 2018, tax revenues were taxed at the rate of 
33% as income tax, in addition, was applicable, with a surcharge 
of 4%. 

The financing Law 1943 of December 28, 2018, eliminates 
the tax surcharge, as of January 1, 2019, and modifies the tax rate.
Additionally, Law 1943 of 2018, gradually reduces the percent-
age of presumptive tax, until its elimination, in the following 
manner:

Before the Reform With the Reform Nominal Variation

2019
Income tax: 33%
Presumptive tax: 3,5% of  
liquid equity 

Income tax: 33%
Presumptive tax: 1,5% of 
liquid equity 

Income tax: 0%
Presumptive tax:  
Reduction of  2%

2020
Income tax: 33%
Presumptive tax: 3,5% of  
liquid equity 

Income tax: 32%
Presumptive tax: 1,5% of 
liquid equity 

Income tax: Reduction of 1%
Presumptive tax:  
Reduction of 2% 

2021
Income tax: 33%
Presumptive tax: 3,5% of  
liquid equity 

Income tax: 31%
Presumptive tax: 0% of  
liquid equity 

Income tax: Reduction of 2%
Presumptive tax:  
Reduction of 3.5% 

2022 Forward
Income tax: 33%
Presumptive tax: 3,5% of  
liquid equity 

Income tax: 30%
Presumptive tax: 0% of  
liquid equity 

Income tax: Reduction of 3%
Presumptive tax:  
Reduction of 3.5% 

Table 17
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The Financing Law introduced new parameters, regarding 
deductions and tax discounts, among which is highlighted, 
the deduction of 100% of taxes, rates, and contributions, that 
have been paid within the period, different from the income 
tax and the discount of the 50% of the industry and commerce 
tax, notices and boards, paid during the year. It also establishes 
that the VAT, paid in the acquisition, construction, training, and 
importation of productive real fixed assets, can be included as a 
deduction, in the income tax of the year in which the payment is 
realized, or in any of the following taxable periods.

The general rate of withholding payments abroad, increases 
from 15% to 20%.

Tax withholdings, for payments of administrative services, or 
management, treated in Article 124 of the Tax Statute, increases 
from 15 to 33%.

Law 1943 of 2018, constitutes the Colombian +olding Com-
panies (C+C) regime, which is a special tax regime for national 
companies, that has as one of their main activities, the holding of 
securities, investment or holding of shares, or holdings in com-
panies, or Colombian entities and/or from abroad.

Among the benefits that the C+C regime, are:
• Dividends distributed by non-resident entities to C+C, will 

be exempt from the payment of income tax, as will the 
income, derived from the sale, or transmission, of their par-
ticipation in non-resident entities.

• When the holding company distributes the dividends, these 
will be considered taxed, and taxes paid abroad cannot be 
discounted.

For the taxable periods of 2019 and 2020, taxpayers who, in 
their private liquidation of income tax and complementary taxes, 
increase their net income tax, by at least a minimum percentage 
of thirty percent (30%), in relation to the net income tax of the 
immediately preceding year, the finality of the declaration will be 
within six (6) months, following the date of its presentation.

If the increase in the net income tax is at least twenty per-
cent (20%), with respect to the net income tax of the immedi-
ately preceding year, the finality of the statements shall be within 
twelve (12) months following presentation.

The foregoing provides that, within the time established for 
each of the cases, no notice has been given to correct, nor spe-
cial requirements or special location, or provisional settlement, 
and that the filings are duly filed and paid, in a timely manner.

NOTE 11. 
Trade and other account payables
The balances of trade and other accounts payable, are as follows:

2018 2017
Cost and expenses payable 549 668
Dividends payable (See note 13.3) 73.415 68.995

Payroll deductions and contributions 500 232

Loans and accounts payable to related parties (Note 17) 16 118

Total 74.480 70.013

Current 74.322 69.855

Non-current 158 158

Table 18

NOTE 12. 
Employee benefits
Employee benefits, correspond to all considerations, arising 
from formal plans or agreements, legal requirements, granted by 
the Company, in exchange for services rendered by employees, 
or for severance indemnities. Benefits include all remuneration, 

realized directly to employees, or their beneficiaries or depen-
dents of employees, (spouse, children and others), and/or third 
parties, whose settlement can be made through cash payments, 
and�or supply of goods and services (non-monetary profit). 

The balance of liabilities for employee benefits at December 
31, 2018 and December 2017, is as follows:

2018 2017
Short-term benefits 774 649
Post-Employment benefits - Defined benefits plans (12.1) - 13.492

Other long-term benefits (12.2) 1.474 2.190

Total liabilities for employee benefits 2.248 16.331

Current portion 745 1.205

Non-current portion 1.503 15.126

Table 19
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12.1.  POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS -  
DEFINED BENEFITS PLANS

The liability for post-employment benefits is estimated using the 
current technique of the projected credit unit, which requires 
the use of financial and demographic assumptions, including 
but not limited to: discount rate, inflation index, wage increase 
expectation, life expectancy, and employee turnover rate. The 
estimation of the liability, as well as the determination of the 

values of the assumptions, used in the valuation, is performed 
by an independent external actuary. Given the long-term hori-
zon of these benefit plans, the estimates are subject to a signifi-
cant degree of uncertainty, any change in actuarial assumptions 
directly impacts the value of the pension obligation, and other 
post-employment benefits.

A reconciliation of the movements, of the defined benefit 
plans, is as follows:

2018 2017

Present value of obligations at January 1st 13.492 12.916
(+) Cost of services 536 546

(+) Interest expenses 919 957

(+/-) Actuarial losses and/or gains (1.102) (709)

(-) Payments (5.949) (218)

(+/-) Others (7.896) -

Present value of obligations at December 31st  (*) - 13.492

Table 20

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Income State-
ment, under other comprehensive income.

The Company estimates that payments for defined benefit 
plans will begin after 5 years. The estimated time for the termi-
nation of the benefit is 20 years.

(*)  During 2018, a fund was established to administer this 
benefit.

12.2. LONG-TERM BENEFITS
The long-term benefits include mainly seniority premiums and 
variable remuneration systems.

Seniority premiums is paid to the employee for every five 
years of service. The liability is recognized gradually, as the 

employee renders the services, that will make it creditor. Its 
measurement is realized annually, through the use of actuarial 
techniques. Current gains and losses, arising from experience, 
and changes in actuarial assumptions, are charged or credited to 
income for the period in which they arise.

The Company does not have specific assets to support the long-
term benefits. The liability from long-term benefits, is determined 
separately for each plan, using the actuarial valuation method of 
the projected credit unit, using actuarial assumptions, as of the date 
of the reporting period. The current service cost, past service cost, 
interest cost, actuarial gains and losses, as well as, any liquidation or 
reduction of the plan is recognized in the profit and loss.

The following is the reconciliation of movements of other 
long-term employee benefits:

2018 2017

Present value of obligations at January 1st 2.190 2.082
(+) Cost of services 889 708

(+) Interest expenses 122 144

(+/-) Actuarial losses and/or gains (334) 174

(-) Payments (1.393) (833)

(+/-) Others - (85)

Present value of obligations at December 31st  1.474 2.190

Table 21

12.3. EXPENSES FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Amounts recognized as expenses for employee benefits, are as follows:

2018 2017

Short-term benefits 6.002 5.581
Post-Employment benefits 678 546
Other long-term benefits 572 691
 Sub Total 7.252 6.818

Reimbursement for contracts of mandate (*) (6.565) (5.971)

Total 687 847

Table 22
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(*)  By virtue of the mandated agreement, Grupo Nutresa S.A. transfers to the subsidiary companies, the cost for employee benefits, 
corresponding to the corporate services provided to each of them.

12.4. ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
The main actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial measurement of the defined and long-term plans are:

2018 2017

Discount rates 7,45% 7,21%

Salary increase rates 4,20% 4,30%

Employee turn-over rates 1,00% 1,0%

Table 23

According to the guidelines prescribed by the current regulation, 
for discount purposes, the rate of high quality corporate bonds, 
whose maturity is in accordance with the established benefits, 
is used. +owever, the Colombian market does not have suƻ-
cient liquidity and depth in these types of bonds. Grupo Nutresa 
establishes its hypothesis of the discount rate, based on the 
assumptions of the performance of the sovereign debt bonds, of 
the committed country, denominated in percentages, according 
to the terms of the obligation. The rates of the real yield curve are 
obtained from the information published daily, by the market.

The table used is mortality rate, by sex. This table is issued 
by the Financial Superintendence, through Resolution 1555 of 
2010 for Colombia. 

The salary increase rates were determined based on histori-
cal performance, the projections of the inflation, and consumer 
price indexes. 

The turnover rate of employees is estimated, based on his-
torical data of the Company.

12.5. SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
A quantitative analysis of sensitivity to a change in a significant 
key assumption, as of December 31, 2018, would generate the 
following impact on the obligation for other long-term benefits, 
as well as, senior premium:

Others defined benefits  Seniority Premium

Discount rate +1% (90) (49)

Discount rate -1% 91 53

Rate of salary increases +1% 37 54

Rate of salary increases -1% (37) (51)

Table 24

The methods and assumptions used to prepare sensitiv-
ity analyzes of the present value of the obligations were the 
same method, as for the actuarial calculation, at December 
31, 2018: Projected Credit Unit. Sensitivity has no limitations, 
nor changes in the methods and assumptions used to prepare 
the analysis of the current period.

NOTE 13. 
Equity

13.1. ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL
As of December 31st of 2018 and 2017, the balance of 

capital of the Parent Company was $2.301, representing a total 
of 460.123.458 fully paid and subscribed shares.  There were 
no changes to the make-up of the capital during neither to the 
period nor the comparative period.

There is a paid-in capital of shares for $ 546.831, from the 
issuance of shares made in previous periods.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Colombian Stock 
Exchange as of December 31, 2018, and its market value was 
$23.500 per share ($27.820 as of December 31, 2017).

The corporate structure of the company, as of December 31, 
is as follows:

2018 2017

Investor Group Number of shares % participation Number of shares % participation
Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S. A. 162.358.829 35,3% 161.398.558 35,1%

Grupo Argos S. A. 45.243.781 9,8% 45.243.781 9,8%

Colombian Funds 80.729.691 17,6% 77.887.378 16,9%
International Funds 37.788.090 8,2% 38.182.333 8,3%
Other Investors 134.003.067 29,1% 137.411.408 29,9%
Total outstanding shares 460.123.458 100% 460.123.458 100%

Table 25
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According to the register of shareholders, at December 31, 2018, there are 11.288 shareholders (2017: 11.900).

13.2. RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS
Of the accounts that make up the equity, reserves at December 31st of 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

2018 2017
Legal reserves 3.787 2.711
Occasional non-distributed reserves 1.558.597 1.558.597

Other reserves 2.353.301 2.184.712

Total Reserves 3.915.685 3.746.020

Retained earnings 3 3

Total 3.915.688 3.746.023
Table 26

Legal reserves: In accordance with Colombian Commercial Law, 
10% of the net income each year should be appropriated as a 
legal reserve, until the balance is equivalent to at least 50% of 
the subscribed capital. The reserve is not distributable before the 
liquidation of the Company, but must be used to absorb losses. 
The excess over the minimum required by law is freely available 
to the Shareholders. 

Occasional non-distributed reserves: corresponds to the vol-
untary reserve, approved by the Shareholder’s Assembly at a 
0eeting on 0arch 18, 2016, in reference to accumulated profits, 
generated in the process of First-time Adoption of IFRS.

Other reserves: includes the value caused by tax on wealth, pay-
ment of dividends, and other reserves substantially unrestricted 
by Shareholders.

Retained earnings: corresponds mainly to the realization of 
financial instruments of liquidation of the Livestock Fund of 
Antioquia, in the amount of $3.

13.3. DISTRIBUTION OF DIVIDENDS
The Ordinary Shareholders Meeting, held on March 20, 2018, 
decreed ordinary share dividends of $47,2 (*) per-share and 
per-month, equivalent to $566,40 (*) annually per share (2017: 
$534 (*) per share) over 460.123.458 outstanding shares, during 
the months between April 2018 and March 2019, inclusive, for 

a total of $260.614 (2017: $245.706 between April 2017 and 
March 2018).

This dividend was declared by taking untaxed earnings, 
before 2017, in the amount of �64.218, and from profit in 
2017, in the amount of $196.396. Also in 2017, this dividend 
for �245.706 was decreed, by taking from the profits of the 
year 2016 $242.945 and of the non-taxed occasional reserves 
$2.761. 

At December 31, 2018, dividends have been paid in the 
amount of $256.194 (2017: $240.744), and $73.415, are payable 
for this concept (2017: $68.995).

Appropriations authorized by the General Meeting of Share-
holders, are recorded as reserves, charged to profit and loss, of 
the year, for compliance with legal provisions or to cover expan-
sion plans, or financing needs. The Company carries the profits of 
the year to accumulated profits, and these to reserves. The value 
of appropriations is $233.883 (2017: $156.153).

(*) In Colombian Pesos.

NOTE 14. 
Other comprehensive income, 
accumulated
Below is a breakdown of each of the components of accumu-
lated other comprehensive results, in the Separate Financial 
Statements:

Actuarial
Losses (14.1)

Financial 
Instruments 

(14.2)

Investments 
in Associates 

(14.3)

Subsidiaries  
(14.4)

Total Other 
Comprehensive 

Income, Accumulated

Balance at January 1, 2018   (4.295)    3.885.288     (31)      404.254        4.285.216 

Losses/Gains for new measurements 1.102 (803.165) (458) (59.701) (862.222)

Associated income tax (523) - 137 - (386)

Balance at December 31, 2018 (3.716) 3.082.123 (352) 344.553 3.422.608
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Actuarial
Losses (14.1)

Financial 
Instruments 

(14.2)

Investments 
in Associates 

(14.3)

Subsidiaries  
(14.4)

Total Other 
Comprehensive 

Income, Accumulated
Balance at January 1, 2017              (4.770)         3.632.890               (358) 271.370 3.899.132

Losses/Gains for new measurements 709 252.401 487 132.884 386.481

Associated income tax (234) - (160) - (394)
Realization of other comprehensive 
income - (3) - - (3)

Balance at December 31, 2017    (4.295)     3.885.288    (31)      404.254    4.285.216 
Table 27

During the period, no reclassification of gains�losses previously 
recognized in other comprehensive income to profit and loss, 
was realized. 

14.1.  (LOSSES) GAINS ON RE-MEASUREMENT OF 
DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

The component of new measurements of defined benefit plans 
represents the accumulative value of the actuarial gains and 
losses, primarily fromŤ Other defined employee benefitsŤ.  The 
net value of the new measurements is transferred to retained 
earnings and not reclassified to the Income Statement.

See Note 12, for detailed information about defined ben-
efits plans.

14.2.  VALUATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - 
EQUITY INVESTMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR 
VALUE THROUGH EQUITY

The component of other comprehensive income from equity 
investments measured at fair value through profit and loss rep-
resents the accumulated value of the gains or losses valuation to 
fair value minus the values transferred to retained earnings when 
these investments are sold.  Changes of fair value are not reclas-
sified to the Income Statement.

See Note 9 for detailed information on these investments.

14.3.  INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES - INTEREST 
IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME,  
ACCUMULATED ACUMULADOS 

The component of other comprehensive income from 

investments in associates and joint ventures, represents the 
accumulated value of gains or losses, from the participation in 
other comprehensive income of the investee. These accumu-
lated profits may be transferred to profit or loss for the period in 
the cases provided by accounting standards.

See Note 8 for detailed information on investments in 
associates.

14.4.  SUBSIDIARIES – INTEREST IN OTHER COM-
PREHENSIVE INCOME, ACCUMULATED

The component of other comprehensive income of invest-
ments of subsidiaries measured to the Equity Method, through 
profit or loss, represents the accumulated value of gains or 
losses of valuation from the Equity Method, minus the values 
transferred to retained earnings, when these investments 
have been sold.  Changes in fair value can be reclassified to 
profit and loss for the period.

See Note 7, for more detailed information, regarding 
investments in subsidiaries and the application of the Equity 
Method of the other comprehensive income.

NOTE 15. 
Expenditure by nature
Below is a detailed breakdown of expenditures by nature, for the 
period:

2018 2017

Taxes other than income tax 1.686 1.400

Fees 1.071 1.295

Employee benefits (Note 12.3) 687 847

Other expenses 200 34

Other services 67                              101

Insurance 51 45

Travel expenses 9 45

Commission fees -                               286

Leases - 24

Total 3.771 4.077

Table 28
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Grupo Nutresa S.A. operates under the modality of com-
mercial offer of services of mandate without representa-
tion, offering shared services to the other companies of the 
Group, for integral management. Under this contract, the 
expenses, associated with the services provided to each of 
them, are transferred to the subsidiary companies.

NOTE 16. 
Earnings per share
The amount of basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net 
profit for the year attributable to holders of ordinary equity of the 
Parent, by the weighted average number of ordinary outstanding 
shares during the year. 

Below is the information about earnings and number of 
shares used in the computations of basic earnings per share:

2018 2017

Net income attributable to holders of ordinary equity of the Parent 510.161 430.279

Outstanding shares 460.123.458 460.123.458

Earnings per share attributable to controlling interest 1.108,75 935,14

Table 29

There are no equity instruments with potential dilutive impact 
on earnings per share.

In accordance with current corporate regulations in Colom-
bia, the distribution and payment of dividends to the Sharehold-
ers of the Parent Company is not realized on Separate Financial 
Statements, but on the Separate Financial Statements of Grupo 
Nutresa S.A.

NOTE 17. 
Disclosure of related parties
The following table represents the values of transactions 
between related parties at year-end:

2018

Company

Purchases 
of Goods 

and 
Services

Sales of 
Goods 

and 
Services

Receivables 
Balance

Payables 
Balance

Dividend 
Income  

Dividends 
Paid

Interest 
expenses

Subsidiaries

Alimentos Cárnicos S.A.S. - 534 - - - - -

Compañía de Galletas Noel S.A.S. - 525 - - 45.815 - -

Compañía de Galletas Pozuelo DCR, S.A. - - - - - - -

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S.A.S. - 486 510 - 96.458 - -

Compañía Nacional de Chocolates del Perú S.A. - - - - 2 - -

Industria Colombiana de Café S.A.S. - 285 - - - - -

Industria de Alimentos Zenú S.A.S. - - - - 23.463 - -

Industrias Aliadas .S.A.S. - - - - 14.201 - -

IRCC S.A.S. Industria de Restaurantes Casuales S. A. S. - 48 90 16 - - -

Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S.A.S. - 119 - - 20.130 - -

Productos Alimenticios Doria S.A.S. - 76 - - 50.309 - -

Novaventa S.A.S. - - - - 30.334 - -

Servicios Nutresa S.A.S. 12 - - - - - 46

Setas Colombianas S.A. - - - - 2.948 - -

Productos Naturela S.A.S. 3.221 - - - - - -
Entities with joint control or significant 
influence over the entity
  Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S.A. 65 - 7.954 62 31.026 90.337 -

Other related parties

  Grupo Bancolombia S.A. 177 - 2 28 - - -

  Grupo  Argos S.A. - - 6.544 - 26.176 25.260 -

Members, Board of Directors 909 - - 13 - -
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2017

Company

Purchases 
of Goods 

and 
Services

Sales of 
Goods 

and 
Services

Receivables 
Balance

Payables 
Balance

Dividend 
Income

Dividends 
Paid

Interest 
expenses

Subsidiaries

 Alimentos Cárnicos S.A.S. 2.777 666 - - - - -

 Compañía de Galletas Noel S.A.S. - 655 467 - 43.197 - -

 Compañía de Galletas Pozuelo DCR, S.A. - - - 12 - - -

 Compañía Nacional de Chocolates S.A.S. - 592 2.905 - 20.422                         
- -

  Industria Colombiana de Café S.A.S. - 402 286 - 102.346 - -

 Industria de Alimentos Zenú S.A.S. - - - - 19.220 - -

 Industrias Aliadas .S.A.S. - - - - 15.614 - -
 IRCC S.A.S. Industria de Restaurantes  
Casuales S. A. S. 8 - - 106 - - -

Meals Mercadeo de Alimentos de Colombia S.A.S. 2.777 168 120 - - - -

 Productos Alimenticios Doria S. A. S. - 92 66 - - - -

 Servicios Nutresa S. A. S. 12 - 7.353 - - - -

 Setas Colombianas S. A. - - - - 2.438 - -
Entities with joint control or significant 
influence over the entity
 Grupo de Inversiones Suramericana S. A 53 - - 50 28.981 84.949 -

Other related parties

 Grupo Bancolombia S. A. 503 - - 31 - - -

 Grupo  Argos S. A. - - 6.185 - 24.740 23.753 -

Members, Board of Directors 880 - - 136 - - -

Table 30

Purchases and sales were executed in equivalent conditions than 
those of the market. Outstanding balances are expected to be 
settled under normal conditions; these balances have not been 
granted, nor received guarantees.  No expense has been rec-
ognized in the current or prior periods, regarding uncollectable 
debts or doubtful accounts related amounts owed by related 
parties.

During the period payments in the amount of $5.702 (2017: 
$5.386) for 2 key personnel (2017: 2 employees) were made.

NOTE 18. 
Events after the reporting period 
These Separate Financial Statements were prepared for pur-
poses of supervision and were authorized for issue, by the Board 
of Grupo Nutresa S.A., on February 22, 2019. No significant 
events, after the close of the Financial Statements, and until the 
date of approval, that may significantly affect the financial posi-
tion of Grupo Nutresa S.A., reflected in the Financial Statement.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GRUPO NUTRESA S. A. 

February 22, 2019

Description of the main matter
In the development of my duties as statutory auditor of Grupo Nutresa S. A., and in compliance with 
the provisions of items 1 and 3 of Article 209 of the Code of Commerce, I am required to report to 
the Shareholders’ Meeting on whether during the year ended December 31, 2018, adequate mea-
sures for internal control, conservation and custody of the Company’s assets or those of third par-
ties in its possession were in place, and to report on proper compliance from the Company’s man-
agement with certain regulatory requirements set forth in various legal and statutory regulations.

The criteria used for the assessment of the matters mentioned in the above paragraph include: 
a) the Company’s bylaws, the minutes of the Shareholders’ Meeting and the legal and regulatory 
provisions regarding my duties as Statutory Auditor, and b) the components of the internal control 
system that the management and those responsible for the Company’s governance consider nec-
essar\ Ior tKe aSSroSriate and timel\ SreSaration oI its financial inIormation�

Management’s responsibility
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate internal 
control system that enables the company to safeguard its assets or those of third parties in its pos-
session, and to comply properly with the bylaws and decisions of the Shareholders’ Meeting. 

In order to comply with the above responsibilities, the management must apply judgments in 
order to assess tKe e[Sected benefits and costs related to tKe control Srocedures tKat aim to Sro-
vide the management with reasonable, but not absolute, assurance in regard to the safeguarding of 
assets against loss due to unauthorized use or disposal, as well as that the Company’s transactions 
are aSSroSriatel\ SerIormed and recorded to alloZ tKe SreSaration oI financial statements tKat are 
free of material misstatement due to fraud or error, in accordance with the Accounting and Finan-
cial Reporting Standards Accepted in Colombia.

Statutory auditor’s responsibility
My responsibility as statutory auditor is to perform an assurance work to express an opinion, based 
on the procedures executed and the evidence obtained, on whether the acts of the Company’s man-
agement conform to the bylaws, and the orders and instructions of the Shareholders’ Meeting, and 
on whether appropriate internal control measures are established by the Company’s management to 
safeguard its assets or those of third parties in its possession. 

Statutory auditor’s report
Statutory auditor’s report on the management’s compliance with the bylaws, orders and instructions of 
the Shareholders’ Meeting, and on the existence of proper measures for internal control, safekeeping and 
custody of the Company’s assets or those of third parties in its possession
(Free translation from the original in Spanish)
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GRUPO NUTRESA S. A. 

February 22, 2019

I performed my duties in accordance with the standards for information assurance accepted in 
Colombia. Those standards require that I comply with the ethical and independence requirements 
established in Decree 2420 of 2015, which are based on principles of integrity, objectivity, profes-
sional comSetence and due care� confidentialit\ and SroIessional beKaYior� and tKat , Slan and Ser-
form procedures which I consider necessary in order to obtain assurance on compliance by the Com-
pany’s management with the bylaws, and the orders or instructions of the Shareholders’ Meeting, 
and on whether adequate measures of internal control, conservation and custody of the Company’s 
assets and those of third parties in its possession were in place at December 31, 2018, and for the 
year then ended, in all material respects of assessment, and in conformity with the criteria described 
in the main matter section.

7Ke accounting firm , am member oI� and ZKicK aSSointed me as tKe statutor\ auditor oI tKe 
Company, applies the International Quality Control Standard 1 and, as a result, maintains a com-
prehensive quality control system that includes documented policies and procedures on com-
pliance with the applicable ethical requirements, professional standards and legal and regulatory 
requirements.

Performed assurance procedures
The above mentioned audit standards require that I plan and execute assurance procedures to obtain 
reasonable assurance that the internal controls implemented by the Company are properly designed 
and oSerate effectiYel\�  7Ke assurance Srocedures selected deSend on tKe statutor\ auditoršs Mudge-
ment� including assessment oI tKe risk oI material misstatement in tKe financial statements due to 
Iraud or error� and tKat tKe &omSan\ Iails to acKieYe an adeTuate leYel oI eƹcienc\ and eƹcac\ in its 
oSerations� 7Ke Srocedures SerIormed included selectiYe tests on tKe design and effectiYe oSeration 
of controls that I considered necessary in the circumstances to provide a reasonable assurance that 
the control objectives determined by the Company’s management are adequate.

The assurance procedures performed were as follows:

• Review of the Company’s bylaws, of the minutes of the meetings of the Shareholders and other 
supervision bodies, in order to verify proper compliance by the Company’s management with 
those bylaws and with the decisions made by the Shareholders’ Meeting.

• Inquiries with the management on changes or projects for amendment of the Company’s bylaws 
during the covered period, along with a validation of their implementation.

• Understanding and assessment of the internal control components on the Company’s financial 
reporting, such as: control environment, risk assessment, information and communication, mo-
nitoring of controls and control activities.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GRUPO NUTRESA S. A. 

February 22, 2019

• Understanding of how the entity has responded to risks arising from the information systems.
• Understanding and assessment of the design of relevant control activities and their validation to 

establish that such activities were implemented by the Company and operate effectively.

, consider tKat tKe audit eYidence tKat , obtained is suƹcient and aSSroSriate to SroYide a basis Ior 
the concept I express below.

Inherent limitations
Due to the limitations inherent to the internal control structure, including the possibility of collusion 
or management override of controls, material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, may be 
not prevented or detected on a timely basis. Likewise, it is possible that the results of my proce-
dures Zill differ or cKange tKeir condition tKrougKout tKe Seriod under assessment� since m\ reSort is 
based on selective tests executed during the period.   Additionally, projections of any internal control 
assessment to future periods are subject to the risk that controls become inadequate due to changes 
in the conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may be impaired.

Concept
Based on the evidence obtained from the work performed as described above, and subject to the 
inherent limitations expressed, it is my concept that, during the year 2018, the acts of the Company’s 
management conformed to the bylaws and to the orders and instructions of the Shareholders’ Meet-
ing, and adequate measures of internal control, and of conservation and custody of the Company’s 
assets and those of third parties in its possession are in place.

This report is issued for and addressed to the Shareholders of Grupo Nutresa S. A., in compliance with 
the requirements set forth in items 1 and 3 of Article 209 of the Colombian Code of Commerce, and 
shall not be used for any other purpose or distributed to other third parties.

Bibiana Moreno Vásquez 
Statutory Auditor 
Professional Card No. 167200-T
Appointed by PwC Contadores y Auditores Ltda. 
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